
 
 
 

         2 February 2021 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Wednesday, 10 February 2021 

beginning at 
7:00 pm 

 
PLEASE NOTE: this will be a ‘virtual meeting’. The meeting can be viewed here: 

https://bit.ly/36Bwutx 

 
TO: Councillor Tina Campbell (Chairman) 
 Councillor Alex Bourne (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Paul Bicknell Councillor Daniel Clarke 
Councillor Jephthe Doguie Councillor Wayne Irish 
Councillor Darshan Mann Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne 

 
Staff Contacts: Nikki Dunne, Democratic Services Officer, 02380 688298 

Email:nikki.dunne@eastleigh.gov.uk  Please email 
Democratic.Services@eastleigh.gov.uk to register to speak before 
the meeting. 
 

 Guy Riddoch, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 3369; Email: 
guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
NATALIE WIGMAN 

Corporate Director - Strategy 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website - 
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings as well as in other formats, including 

Braille, audio, large print and other languages, upon request. 
 

PLEASE NOTE that any member of the press and public may listen-in to 
proceedings at this ‘virtual’ meeting via a weblink which will be publicised on the 
Council website at least 24hrs before the meeting. It is important, however, that 

Councillors can discuss and take decisions without disruption, so the only 
participants in this virtual meeting will be the Councillors concerned, the officers 
advising the Committee and any participants who have registered in advance to 

speak. This meeting may be recorded. 

 

Eastleigh House 
 Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

1

https://bit.ly/36Bwutx
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies     
 
2. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

  
3. Minutes    (Pages 5 - 10)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2021. 
  
4. Public Participation      

 Councillors not on the Local Area Committee and members of the public can 
participate during this section of the meeting in the following ways: 
 

 If you are able to participate live (meet the technical requirements) and wish to 

be present and speak, you will need to notify Democratic Services 4 working 

days (Midday Thursday 4 February 2021) before the meeting. Technical and 

etiquette guides will be provided. 

 Alternatively, the public can email a statement to be read out by ‘the 

spokesperson’.  Emailed statements will need to be received 2 working days 

(Midday Monday 8 February 2021) before the date of the meeting. 

Democratic Services will confirm receipt of the email and confirm it can be read 

out. 

 The statement (including questions) will be the equivalent of a maximum 

of three minutes if read out.  Please therefore restrict your statement to one 

side of A4 (12 font).  This applies audio/ video recordings also. 

 Alternatively a MP4 file will be sent to Democratic Services 4 working days 

(Midday Thursday 4 February 2021) before the meeting.  This must be 

accompanied by a written transcript (emailed). In the event that the file does not 

meet technical requirements the transcript will be read by the spokesperson 

and shown on the screen.  

 Please contact us via democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk 
  
5. Chair's Report     
 
6. Eastleigh Town Centre COVID Recovery Plan Update    (To Follow) 
 
7. Community Governance Review of Unparished area of Eastleigh Borough    

(Pages 11 - 24) 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 22 March 2021 at 7:00 pm 

2

mailto:democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk


 
 

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news- 
 

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 

3

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 19 January 2021  (7:00 pm – 9:15 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Campbell (Chair); Councillors Bourne, Bicknell, Clarke, Doguie 
(from 19:08), Irish, Mann and Tyson-Payne 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

143. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Doguie declared a non-pecuniary interest in the planning 
applications for Former Eastleigh Post Office (Agenda Item 7) as he lives 
in a rented property adjacent to the application. He stated he had an open 
mind and would be taking part in the debate and vote.  
 

144. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2020 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

145. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation on this occasion. 
 

146. CHAIR'S REPORT 
 
The Chair wished everybody a happy new year and hoped that it was a 
much happier and healthier one for all. 
 
The Chair reported that the Pirelli Park play area was now open and being 
well used by local families - further landscaping and planting would follow 
in the Spring.  Local dog walkers were asked to use the area responsibly 
and not allow pets to urinate against the play equipment and to bag and 
bin their dog waste to work together to keep the play area safe for 
children. 
 
The Chair updated that the special planning meeting, which was due to 
take place on the 17 December to hear the airport runway extension 
application, was re-scheduled following a request from the airport who 
wanted more time to respond to the latest public consultation. The meeting 
was expected to take place in March, subject to further information being 
submitted by the airport this week and a further public consultation.   
 

5

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

The Chair reported that following the extensive vandalism of the 
Freespace skate park at the end of last year, the Committee had taken the 
decision to bring forward the major improvement project that was planned 
for the site.  The project will take in the region of 12 months to complete 
but would ensure that the young people of Eastleigh were not penalised 
because of the destructive actions of a few individuals, whilst making best 
use of the limited funding available. 
 
The Chair noted, from the agenda, the proposal to support local charities 
and groups with community grant funding of £9,613. The Chair was 
extremely proud that at a time when many Councils were struggling to 
deliver services and having to make extensive cuts that this Council was 
still able to invest in the local community. 
 
The Chair drew attention to the Community Pantry which was opened at 
the Cableworks in Tinning Way. The Pantry was open on Mon, Tues, 
Thurs and Fri from 9.30-12; and on Wed from 4-6. It provided heavily 
discounted fresh, frozen and general foods to local families struggling to 
manage in challenging times. 
 
The Chair reported that the Council was currently surveying local citizens 
on proposals to create a parish council in the unparished part of Eastleigh. 
This would give residents greater ownership and control over the day-to-
day activities and services delivered on their behalf, such as the 
maintenance of open spaces and play areas, and the management of 
community buildings, cemeteries and local car parks. The survey closes 
on the 25 January and a report would come to an extra meeting of this 
Committee on Wednesday 10 February. 
 
The Chair reported that following citizen feedback at the last committee 
meeting, they proposed to increase the leaf collection service in the 
Autumn so that the commitment to tree planting did not create problems 
for local residents. 
 

147. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 
 
The Senior Planning Officer gave a short presentation on guidelines that 
had to be taken into account when determining planning applications; in 
particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  This 
was set against the broader policy framework. 
 

148. PLANNING APPLICATION - FORMER EASTLEIGH POST OFFICE, 14 
HIGH STREET, EASTLEIGH, SO50 5LA 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Senior Planning Officer 
(Agenda item 7) concerning demolition of former post office and sorting 
office buildings and erection of 1no. four storey building consisting of 
ground floor flexible commercial space (within use classes E(a), E(c), E(e), 
E(g)(i), Class F1/F2) and 10no. affordable residential units, and 1no. six 
storey building consisting of flexible ground floor commercial space (within 

6



3 
 

use classes E(a), E(c), E(e), E(g)(i), Class F1/F2) and 18no. residential 
units with creation of associated public realm / open space (Ref: 
F/20/89125). 
 
Members were updated that, since the publication of the agenda: 
 
• Amended plans had been received to address the matter of the impacts 
of the development upon the privacy of the occupiers of the neighbouring 
properties to the north and additional conditions will be imposed in this 
respect; 

• Additional consultation responses had been received from Southampton 
Airport (no objection subject to an informative in relation to the use of 
cranes during the construction works), Environmental Health (no objection 
subject to conditions in respect of contaminated land, hours of deliveries, 
hours of operation of the commercial uses, and noise control measures 
covering building insulation and music levels within the commercial units in 
the interests of amenity), and Economic Development (no objection 
subject to a developer contribution to mitigate for the reduction in 
employment floorspace resulting from the development). 
 
A Recorded Vote was requested by The Chair and duly supported, due to 
technical difficulties with the electronic voting system: 
 

FOR: Councillors: Bicknell; Bourne; Campbell; Clarke; Doguie; Irish; 
Mann. 
 
AGAINST: Councillor Tyson-Payne 
 
(FOR: 7; AGAINST: 1) 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
Subject to: 
 

i. The completion of outstanding consultations and the addition 
of any necessary additions or amendments to conditions; 

ii. The applicant entering into a legal agreement to secure the 
required affordable housing and planning obligations; and 

iii. The completion of a Habitats Regulations Assessment for the 
development by the Local Planning Authority and the 
undertaking of subsequent consultation with Natural England 
where required. 

 
Delegated back to the Head of Housing and Development in 
conjunction with the Chair and Vice Chair of Eastleigh Local Area 
Committee to PERMIT. 
 
[NOTES: (A) Two local residents had statements read out by the Local 
Area Manager in opposition to the application citing concerns around the 

7



4 
 

height and scale of the development, invasion of privacy to the adjacent 
property and the dust and disruption the building work will bring; (B) and 
the agent spoke live in support of the application stating it is a high quality 
efficient mixed use building on an existing site, and includes new public 
links and public realm for community use; (C) Councillor Doguie declared 
a non-pecuniary interest in the planning application as he lives in a rented 
property adjacent to the application. He stated he had an open mind and 
would be taking part in the debate and vote.] 
 

149. AIR QUALITY 6 MONTHLY UPDATE REPORT 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Senior Pollution Control 
Officer (Agenda Item 8) concerning the state of air quality and progress in 
implementing the Eastleigh Air Quality Management Area Action Plan.. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
The Eastleigh Local Area Committee noted the following:  
 
(1) the update to the air quality measurements for Eastleigh in 

2020; and 

(2) progress made against the Air Quality Action Plan. 
 
[NOTE: A statement was read out by the Local Area Manager from a 
member of the public citing concerns that the automatic monitoring station 
in Southampton Road was not working, that the data was inaccurate and 
requesting that Eastleigh be made a smoke free zone. The Senior 
Pollution Control Officer responded to the statement and will follow up with 
any concerns.] 
 

150. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Local Area Manager (Agenda 
Item 9) that contained recommendations for expenditure from the 
Committee’s capital and revenue budget. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
(1) £10,000 was allocated for stream bank re-enforcement at 8 

Oaklands, Chandler’s Ford from the revenue budget; 
(2) £20,000 was allocated for the Summer 2021 event from the 

revenue reserve; 
(3) £5,200 was allocated for the Velmore Youth Café 21/22 from the 

revenue reserve; 
(4) £5,000 was allocated for the Mela 2021 from the revenue reserve; 
(5) £2,000 was allocated for Park Sport 2021 from the revenue 
reserve; 
(6) £1,400 was allocated for the Lantern Parade 2021 from the 

revenue reserve; 

8



5 
 

(7) £1,000 was allocated for Pride 2021 from the revenue reserve; 
(8) £750 was allocated for Friday Night Football 21/22 from the 

revenue reserve; 
(9) £6,000 was allocated for town centre flowers from the revenue 

budget; and 
(10) £5,000 was allocated for enhanced autumn leaf clearance from 

the revenue budget. 
 

151. FEES AND CHARGES 
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Local Area Manager (Agenda 
Item 10) that contained recommendations for fees and charges levied for 
services that are the responsibility of Eastleigh Local Area Committee. 
  
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Local Area Committee: 

(1)   approved the fees and charges set out in the Appendices A-D 
(Agenda Item 10) to come into effect from 1 April 2021; and 

(2)  kept the charges for car parking unchanged for 2021/22, in line 
with the emerging corporate recommendation. 

 
152. COMMUNITY GRANTS 

 
The Assistant Local Area Manager stated that although some of the 
applications did not fully meet the criteria for grants from the Committee, it 
was agreed that it was very important to support local charities, especially 
under the current Covid 19 difficulties.  
 
The report of the Assistant Local Area Manager on behalf of the Eastleigh 
Community Grants Panel was considered. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Community Grants be approved as contained in Appendix 1 
(Agenda Item 11) to the report. 
 
 
 

153. PLANNING APPEALS 
 
The Head of Legal Services reported:- 
 
(a)  that the following appeals had been lodged:- 
 
9 Westfield Road, Chandlers Ford, SO53 3GT (F/20/87442) 
 

9



6 
 

Appealed against the Council's refusal of planning permission for: Erection 
of 1no. detached 2-bedroom dwelling with provision of dropped kerb from 
Westfield Crescent, and addition of single storey side extension to 9 
Westfield Road following demolition of existing attached store.   
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
M6614 

10



   

 

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

 10th February 2021  

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE  

15th February 2021  

COUNCIL 

25th February 2021 

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW - UNPARISHED AREA OF 
EASTLEIGH BOROUGH 

Report of the Strategic Planning Manager 

 

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that;   
 
(1) Eastleigh Local Area Committee considers this report, comments on whether 

one or two new councils should be created, and makes any further comments 
to the Administration Committee. 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that;   
 
(2) Administration Committee considers the report and the comments made by 

Eastleigh Local Area Committee; 

(3) Administration Committee recommends to Council that a Reorganisation 
Order be made to create either one or two new councils for the unparished 
area of Eastleigh borough. 

COUNCIL 

Recommendation(s) 
 
It is recommended that;   
 
(4) Council consider the comments and recommendations from the 

Administration Committee and agrees that a Reorganisation Order be made 

11

Agenda Item 7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

accordingly, to create one or two new councils for the unparished area of 
Eastleigh borough.  

 

 

Summary 
 
A Community Governance Review was initiated following the decision at Administration 
Committee on 12 October 2020. The consultation took place from 4th December 2020 to 
25th January 2021. This report details the process of the Community Governance Review 
including the results of the consultation with residents and other stakeholders. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 

 

Strategic Implications  

2. The report relates to good governance of the Borough which underpins all of 
the Council’s Corporate Plan (2015-2025) objectives. This matter also 
supports the Council’s Local First principles in seeking to promote decision 
making at the most local level.   

Introduction 

3. Under the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 local 
authorities have the power to stimulate debate around the creation of parish 
councils in currently unparished areas. Eastleigh Borough Council has long 
held the view that effective community engagement in local government is 
best achieved by involving local people in key decisions affecting their area.  

Following a Full Council motion agreed on 20 February 2020 (“…Council will 
consult residents of the remaining non-parished area about the possibility of 
becoming parished.”), the Council’s Administration Committee on 12 October 
agreed that the Council carry out a Community Governance Review (CGR) for 
the unparished area of Eastleigh borough, including a consultation with local 
residents and stakeholders.  

Review process 

4. In accordance with the terms of reference as agreed at Administration 
Committee on 20 February 2020; 

(a) Information on the consultation process, a map showing the area being 
considered for parishing, a frequently asked questions section, survey 
link and a hard copy survey were put together in the form of a leaflet 
(see Appendix A).  

12



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

(b) Leaflets were hand delivered to all households and business premises 
within the unparished area of Eastleigh borough from 4th – 13th 
December 2020. (The delivery operation was funded by the Council 
and carried out following Covid-secure guidelines.) The leaflet included 
a Freepost address for postal responses and a web link for an online 
response to the survey. The website link went live on 4th December 
2020. 

(c) Consultees in the unparished area were asked; 

What would be your preferred type of council? 

i. A new single parish or town council is created to cover the 
whole unparished area 

ii. A new parish or town council is created just for my 
neighbourhood 

iii. No local council for our town 

(d) A list of stakeholders (see Appendix B) including neighbouring parish 
councils and local authorities were advised of the CGR taking place 
and invited, via the consultation process, to give views. 

(e) Cllr House participated in a radio segment on Unity 101’s community 
hour on 15th December 2020 to discuss the consultation, what it 
involves and what it means for residents. 

(f) Chief Executive, Nick Tustian briefed One Community on the review, 
and sought views from all the existing parish and town councils in the 
borough. 

(g) Media coverage of the review included; articles in Daily Echo, Borough 
news, Eastleigh news, a dedicated webpage including question & 
answer section, news release and social media posts. 

(h) An Equality Impact Assessment was completed prior to the 
consultation taking place. In order to ensure the consultation was 
inclusive for residents with protected characteristics;  

(i) Community engagement specialist disseminated the information 
from the leaflet to local groups with English as a second 
language and completed the survey on their behalf to ensure 
their opinion was included. 

(ii) Community engagement specialist engaged with the disability 
forum to advise of the consultation and offer audio versions, 
easy read and large print versions; none were requested. 

 

13



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Consultation responses 

5. There were 872 responses to the consultation. 855 were from residential 
households, 10 from businesses and 7 others. 729 responses were received 
online, 2 by email, 140 forms by post and 1 letter was received. The table 
shows a summary of the responses. The turnout of residential households for 
this survey was 7.8%  

What would be your preferred type of council? Total Percent 
(rounded) 

A new single parish or town council is created to 
cover the whole unparished area 

441 51% 

A new parish or town council is created just for my 
neighbourhood 

284 33% 

No local council for our town 142 16% 

Not Answered 5 1% 

 

6. Of the 10 businesses responding, 5 wished to see a single parish council, 1 a 
neighbourhood parish council and 4 no local council. 

7. Of the 284 respondents indicating they would prefer a neighbourhood-based 
council, respondents identified mainly with the following neighbourhoods: 
 

Option Percentage 
of 
respondents 

Approximate 
populations* 

Boyatt Wood and Twyford Road 33 8,000 

Newtown 2 1,500 

Central Eastleigh / Eastleigh Town Centre 37 11,000 

Aviary estate 5 2,000 

Stoneham 3 1,500 

South Eastleigh 16 2,000 

Lakeside 4 1,000 

*The population calculations at this neighbourhood level are rough approximations. 

14



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

8. The Council only received two responses from stakeholders (not residents or 
businesses).  Allbrook Parish Council proposed a new parish council for 
Boyatt Wood area. Eastleigh Labour Party proposed no local council at this 
time. 

9. In summary the consultation showed that there is a significant majority 
(51+33=84%) of respondents who wish to see the area parished in some 
form. A small majority (51% of the total, 61% of those favouring some form of 
parishing) prefer a single parish council.  

10. A significant minority (33%) would welcome a parish council for their 
neighbourhood. The neighbourhoods that people identify with fall mainly into 
north (Boyatt Wood) and central areas of the unparished area, with smaller 
neighbourhoods on the southern and western outer areas of the town centre. 

11. The turnout of around 7.8% of residential households is low but typical of 
similar consultations by post and online (as opposed to a formal ballot of 
electors) and sufficiently significant to aid the decision-making of the Council. 
(The average turnout in the 2009 CGR using a formal poll method, was 
27.7%) 
 

Further issues for consideration in the review 

12. As well as consultation with residents and stakeholders the review has 
considered a range of other matters and presents the following findings.  

13. The demographics of the area. The population of the unparished area has 
increased by well over 2000 since 2008, from around 23,800 in 2012 to over 
26,200 in 2018. The population is likely to rise further as the Council’s housing 
and town centre approach includes increasing housing density in sustainable 
locations such as the town centre.  

14. The varying population sizes of existing parish and town council sizes are 
shown below. Smaller councils can claim to be very ‘local’ indeed, usually 
reflecting defined and separate village settlements, with larger councils in 
town centres and more easily having a critical mass to own and manage a 
wider range of assets and services.   

Parish 2018 % 

Allbrook & North Boyatt 1,843 1% 

Bishopstoke 10,224 8% 

Botley 5,393 4% 

Bursledon 6,953 5% 

Chandler's Ford 24,483 19% 

Eastleigh Unparished Area 26,214 20% 

Fair Oak & Horton Heath 10,978 8% 

Hamble-le-Rice 4,777 4% 

Hedge End 22,261 17% 

15



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Hound 6,574 5% 

West End 11,958 9% 

Total 131,658 100% 

 

15. The identity and interests of the communities affected. The identity of the 
unparished area is a subjective assessment but local knowledge and 
responses from the consultation indicate that people identify significantly as 
residents of ‘Central Eastleigh ’ but also with the local neighbourhood 
immediately surrounding them, often bounded by features such as 
infrastructure (where major roads or railway lines create barriers or 
boundaries), and schools, services, shops and transport infrastructure (where 
frequent daily journeys may create a sense of neighbourhood).  

16. Convenient and efficient governance. There is strong and effective system 
of governance across the majority of the borough based on a partnership of 
Local Areas Committees with local parish or town councils. These more local 
councils are self-determining and play a strong role in advocating specifically 
for their areas, with the ability to directly raise funds from parishioners via a 
parish precept, in order to maintain levels of service set by local parish or 
town councillors. There is currently an anomaly in that a significant proportion 
of the borough’s population does not benefit from this partnership.  

17. Likelihood of local government reorganisation. National government has 
signalled for several years that it wishes to reorganise local government, 
preferring to replace county and district councils with unitary councils. A White 
Paper is expected sometime this year. Any likely future combinations of 
district, county and existing unitary councils (e.g. Southampton City Council) 
would see direct control of assets and services for the unparished area of 
Eastleigh borough being centralised into a much larger and more remote 
unitary council. Current parished areas of Eastleigh would be able to retain a 
level of control and influence in these circumstances, not matched in the 
unparished area. 

Overall findings and recommendations of the review 

18. The Council’s desire to complete the parishing of the borough, based on 
principles of localism, and effective and efficient governance, is supported by 
the consultation responses. 

19. The geography and features of the unparished area, i.e. a settlement largely 
oriented towards its main centre (shops, services, transport connections) 
imply that a single council may be appropriate; this is supported by the 
majority of the consultation responses. The local identity of different 
neighbourhoods within the unparished area could be preserved by the 
creation of parish wards within the single council. 

20. However a significant minority of respondents would like to have a council 
reflecting the more local identity of their neighbourhood. Responses to the 
consultation and the review of the area indicate: 

16



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

(a) A council could be created for the Boyatt Wood area if it is deemed to 
constitute a natural community. The area includes a number of open 
spaces, schools and a local centre on Shakespeare Road. 
Consideration should be given to the inclusion of the Twyford Road 
area, and where the southern boundary may lie.  

(b) A second council could include the remaining parts of the unparished 
area, as there is a strong sense of identity for the central and southern 
areas of the town, and other neighbourhoods may be considered too 
small to form reasonable parish council areas on their own.  (Parish 
warding arrangements may be used to reflect these neighbourhood 
identities.) 

21. Smaller local councils can reflect local identity and a clear geographical 
settlement area, but may be too small to efficiently manage services, assets 
and projects to benefit its area. This critical mass and capacity to manage 
important local assets is significant in view of the Borough Council’s preferred 
approach to devolving assets to parish councils. 

Next steps 

22. Comments and recommendations from Eastleigh Local Area Committee will 
be reported to the Administration Committee, whose comments and 
recommendations will be considered by the full Council. 

23. It is recommended that the Council makes a Reorganisation Order to create a 
new single Town Council covering the currently unparished area of Eastleigh 
Borough or two new councils. A number of stakeholders must be advised of 
such an Order. 

24. A working group should be set up to consider a range of issues including 
warding arrangements, the range of assets and services that will transfer to 
the ownership and management of the new council(s), and the initial level of 
precept(s).   

25. In due course a shadow council should be formed for any new council(s), 
pending elections of new parish or town councillors.   

Financial Implications 

26. The Borough Council will need to make provision for work to create the new 
council(s), including staff time in Elections, Legal, Finance and Asset 
Management teams.   Initial work will be undertaken by staff using existing 
budgets. 

27. Once any new councils are established, the Borough Council will reduce the 
special expense in the unparished area for any and all services and assets 
that are taken on by any new council(s), meaning that residents in the area 
will pay less Council Tax to the Borough Council while paying a new precept 
to the new council(s). Residents will not pay for the same services twice. 

17



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Risk Assessment 

28. The proposal will mitigate the risk of loss of local control and influence in the 
likely circumstances of local government reorganisation. 

29. New councils with a critical mass will avoid the risk of being unable to provide 
and manage local services and assets. Warding arrangements within any new 
council areas will help to preserve a sense of local identity. 

30. Work to manage the creation of any new council(s) will be subject to the 
Council’s project management processes, and informed by previous 
experience of Community Governance Reviews and creating new councils in 
recent years in Chandlers Ford and Allbrook. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

31. The report details ways in which the consultation process was as inclusive as 
possible.  

32. Parish and Town Councils as Public Bodies are bound by the same duties as 
district councils in respect of the Equality Act 2010, except that organisations 
with fewer than 150 employees are not obliged to publish equality objectives 
relating to employees. 

33. The proposals in this report have no direct implications for any people with 
protected characteristics. The more local an organisation is the more 
responsive it can be to local needs and diverse voices within the community. 

 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

34. The report has no Climate Change and Environment implications.  A new 
town council will assist in engaging local people in community issues and 
behaviour change that are deemed relevant to the local area, including energy 
use, recycling, and sustainable transport.  

35. A new town council is likely to have control over management of some 
aspects of the environment e.g. open spaces and play areas, including 
planting and biodiversity. (The Borough Council will continue to play an active 
leadership and implementation role in relation to Climate Change.) 

 

Conclusion 

36. The report includes findings of a consultation and consideration of other 
matters included in the CGR which support the formation of one or more new 
local councils for the unparished area of Eastleigh Borough. 

DICCON BRIGHT 
STRATEGIC PLANNING MANAGER 

 

18



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Date: 27 January 2020 
Contact Officer: Diccon Bright / Nicola Treeby 
Tel No: 07788 790 729 
e-mail: diccon.bright@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: Appendix A Consultation Leaflet 
 Appendix B List of Stakeholders 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

 None. 
 

19



This page is intentionally left blank



© Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)

N

Chandler’s Ford
Allbrook

Bishopstoke

West End

Parishes within EBC

Unparished area

Neighbouring authorities

Key:

The unparished area of Eastleigh Borough

N

Dear Resident

We are writing to you about a proposal 
that could bring more locally focused 
decision-making to Eastleigh town centre 
and its surrounding neighbourhoods.  
This leaflet, and the accompanying survey, 
are part of a public consultation to see if 
residents would like to see a new town or 
parish council(s) for the area outlined on  
the map. 

This process is called a Community 
Governance Review (CGR). It is being run 
by Eastleigh Borough Council as part of 
our commitment to giving residents greater 
ownership and control over the day-to-day 
activities and services delivered on your 
behalf. These include the maintenance 
of open spaces and play areas, the 
management of community buildings, 
allotments and cemeteries. 

The context for this CGR is the Government’s 
move towards larger “unitary” councils in 
many parts of the country; these would be 
larger than Borough Councils. This would 
mean that Eastleigh Borough Council and 
Hampshire County Council could be replaced 
by a Council covering a much wider area 
than the present Borough, reducing your 
representation.

If the wider Eastleigh town centre is 
‘parished’, your household would be 
represented by elected parish or town 

councillors who could be responsible for 
your neighbourhood (parish ward). Parish 
wards are usually much smaller than 
Borough Council wards. As a resident of a 
parish ward you would have a greater say in 
how the budget for local services is spent. 

If a new parish or town council(s) is agreed, 
it will bring the Eastleigh town area into line 
with the ten other parish and town councils 
across the Borough. Elections would take 
place in 2022.

We think it is important to take part 
so that local people have a say in the 
decision-making process. We’d really 
appreciate it if you’d take a few 
minutes to answer the short survey 
at www.eastleigh.gov.uk/cgrsurvey

A print version is attached for people 
without internet access. This can be 
returned Freepost to: FREEPOST EBC  
Town Centre CGR. 

You can also drop it off at the Council 
offices at Eastleigh House in Upper 
Market Street. However, if you are able 
to complete it online, your response will 
be easier to process and it will save the 
Council money. The closing date for 
responses is Monday 25 January.

Thank you for taking part. 

Nick Tustian Chief Executive

Community Governance Review consultation 
A new Parish or Town Council for Central Eastleigh

A new parish 
or town 
council for 
Eastleigh?
Give us your views on locally focused  
decision-making for Eastleigh town centre  
and surrounding neighbourhoods.

For more information visit  
www.eastleigh.gov.uk/towncentrecgr

Community Governance Review

21



FAQ

Q.  Why is Eastleigh Borough 
Council consulting on a Community 
Governance Review (CGR)? 
A. Eastleigh Borough Council believes 
that putting in place the most local tier 
of decision-making possible is the best 
way to meet our aim of giving residents 
greater ownership and control over 
the day-to-day activities and services 
delivered on your behalf. If a new parish 
or town council is approved for this area, 
it will put the town centre and surrounding 
neighbourhoods on an equal footing 
with the rest of the Borough. The final 
decision will be based on the views of 
local people. (The Borough Council is 
doing this under the provisions of the 
Local Government and Public Involvement 
in Health Act 2007).

Q. Why is this consultation 
happening now?
A. The government is moving towards 
bigger “unitary” councils in many parts 
of the country which would be larger 
than borough councils. This would mean 
that Eastleigh Borough Council and 
Hampshire County Council could be 
replaced by a council covering a much 
wider area than the present Borough, 
reducing your representation.

At the same time, the government is 
keen to create more parish and town 
councils at a local level, including 
in urban areas. In the past 15 years, 
more than 270 new councils have 
been created across the UK. 

The unparished area of central Eastleigh 
has changed a lot since the last 
Community Governance Review in 2008. 
The Council gave the go-ahead to this 
current CGR consultation in February 
2020, but the process was put on hold 
while the Borough Council put measures 
in place to deal with the impact of the 
coronavirus pandemic. 

Q. What area does it cover? 
A. The area covered by the CGR is 
the remaining ‘unparished’ part of the 
Borough of Eastleigh that doesn’t have 
a town or parish council like the rest of 
the Borough. It is bordered by Allbrook 
parish in the north, the M27/Test Valley/
Southampton City border to the south, 
the M3 to the west, and the River Itchen 
boundary with the Bishopstoke and West 
End parish areas to the east. The area is 
similar in size to the existing Chandler’s 
Ford Parish Council and Hedge End Town 
Council areas.

Q. What services would a new 
parish or town council deliver?
A. Services would include maintaining 
local parks, cemeteries, play areas, 
allotments and community buildings. 
Eastleigh Borough Council currently 
works with parish and town councils in 
the rest of the Borough to help them 
take more local control of these types of 
facilities. Parish and town councils in the 
rest of the Borough also have a strong 
voice in planning issues, separate from 
Eastleigh Borough Council, which is the 

statutory planning authority. A new local 
council would have a role in supporting 
communities through crises, such as the 
current COVID-19 pandemic.

Q. Will this consultation create  
one parish or town council, or two, 
or more? 
A. The unparished area is quite large 
but could be managed by just one town 
council. We’re asking you if you want a 
single parish/town council for the whole 
area, or one for your neighbourhood.

Q. What are the benefits? 
A. A more localised council means that, 
as a resident, you would have a bigger 
say in how your neighbourhood is run, 
the quality of the services provided and 
how much they cost. You would have an 
additional tier of councillors to represent 
you, focusing on more immediately local 
issues – and potentially in a smaller 
neighbourhood area (if more than one 
council is opted for). Research suggests 
that people have the greatest level of trust 
in their most local tier of governance.

Q. What are the financial 
implications – will I pay more 
Council Tax? 
A. The rate of council tax would be set 
locally but, as the new town or parish 
council(s) would be picking up some 
services that are currently delivered 
by the Borough Council, it is unlikely 
that residents would see a significant 
change to their council tax bill. Parish 

councillors are unpaid volunteers, 
normally supported by a small number 
of salaried staff, led by a parish clerk.

Q. When could the new council(s) 
be up and running? 
A. Following this consultation that 
ends on 25 January 2021 the decision 
on whether or not to parish will be 
taken early next year. A Parish Working 
Group would be set up to begin putting 
arrangements in place, and elections of 
new parish or town councillors would take 
place in May 2022. This would create a 
shadow council that would set council tax 
for the year 2023-4.

Q. Why should I respond? 
A. As a resident, decisions on a range 
of important matters are made on your 
behalf all the time. Where there is an 
opportunity to have these decisions 
taken more easily and locally, we think 
people should take it. The area you live 
in has changed significantly since we last 
asked residents about what form of local 
government they’d like to see.

Frequently Asked Questions



Resident Survey

Eastleigh Borough Council thinks that a reorganisation of local 
government in the next few years could see decision-making taken 
away from local areas, with the creation of much larger “unitary” 
councils covering a much wider area than Eastleigh Borough. 

We’re looking for your views on whether a new town or parish council or councils 
should cover the currently ‘unparished’ area outlined on the map.

1.  Please give your full postcode and your house number –  
this will be used for monitoring purposes only:

 Postcode    House number

2. Are you responding as: (please tick)

 a resident a business other (please specify) 

3. What would be your preferred type of council? (please tick)

  i.  A new single parish or town council is created to cover the whole  
unparished area

 ii.  A new parish or town council is created just for my neighbourhood
    Please name or describe your neighbourhood 

 iii. No local council for our town

I confirm I am over 18 years of age (please tick)

If you require an additional print copy of this form, or if you need the information in 
another format, please call us on 023 8068 8000. 
Please return it to: FREEPOST EBC Town Centre CGR

The closing date for responses is Monday 25 January.

Where possible, please complete this survey online at  
www.eastleigh.gov.uk/cgrsurvey  

22



Appendix B  
 

CGR – Stakeholder List 

Name Role 

ELAC Local area committee 

Hampshire CC Border Council 

BID Local Business 

Winchester CC Border Council 

Southampton CC Border Council 

Otterbourne PC Border Parish 

Chandlers ford PC Border Parish 

Allbrook PC Border Parish 

Bishopstoke PC Border Parish 

Test Valley Council Border Council 

West End PC Border Parish 

FairOak & Horton Heath Parish 

Hedge End Parish 

Botley Parish 

Bursledon Parish 

Hound Parish 

Hamble-le-rice Parish 

1 community Community 

Disability forum Community 

23



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Community Governance Review of Unparished area of Eastleigh Borough
	Unparished Area of Eastleigh App 1
	Unparished Area of Eastleigh App2


